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Message from the Chair and the CEO
George Kogios was nominated as the new
IPC Health Board Chair at the February
2019 Board meeting.
Jayne Nelson, IPC Health’s Chief
Strategy, Business Development and
Communications commenced as the new
CEO for IPC Health in May 2019.
Firstly, we would like to thank Trish
McCluskey for her contributions to IPC
Health over the last nine years and as Chair
since February 2015. She completed her
full-term as Board Chair and continued
with IPC Health as a Board Member
until the AGM this year. During her time,
many of the achievements made by
our organisation would not have been
possible without Ms McCluskey’s guidance,
perseverance and leadership.
We would also like to thank John Hedditch
for his term as Deputy Chair alongside Ms
McCluskey and welcome Daryl Whitfort to
the role of Deputy Chair in 2019.
This year, we said a warm farewell to Board
Director Meredith Swaby after nine years
of service and welcomed Trish Collocott,
who was appointed as a Board Director in
February 2019.
We are leading our organisation through
the next phase of its journey and with the
current Strategic Directions document
ending in 2019, the Board has been working
towards finalising a revitalised strategic
approach in this past year with a focus on
stability and growth.
It’s been another great year of strong
performance for IPC Health. We have been
on an upward trajectory for the past two
years, with continued projects and process
improvements, business development and
new funding successes:

One Team
IPC Health

• 67% growth in new clients to IPC Health
GP services
• 10,240 more visits seen by GPs
(38% growth)
• 3,300 more visits with nurses (43% growth)
• 1,000 more child dental visits than last
year (17% growth)
Together, we continue to grow as an
organisation, servicing more people and
introducing new innovative care models

and programs to serve our communities and
their specific needs.
Two new and innovative major projects
implemented included the Social Prescribing
model of value-based health care pilot which
commenced at IPC Health Deer Park Clinic 1
July 2019 (find more information on page 18),
and the Young Leaders of the West program
(find more information on page 20).
IPC Health Clients rank us highly:
• 96% of clients rate us as good or very
good (VHES survey)
• 82% of clients are happy / very happy with
the service (Customer Feedback System
(CFS) on tablets in reception areas)
We couldn’t have made these achievements
without our partnerships with other health
organisations, local, state and federal
governments and community partners. We
have been meeting with local political leaders
and CEOs of partner organisations to promote
IPC Health, advocate for community health
and the need for additional funding for
health services to reach more people in need,
particularly in areas such as dental services.
There are challenges and opportunities
ahead of us with an increasing competitive
environment; changing legislation and
service delivery requirements; and an
exponentially increasing population in
Melbourne’s West.
We are both proud to be working for IPC
Health, where we feel we can truly make
a difference for our local communities and
are working together as a team to create
a great organisation, one which we all truly
feel connected to each other and to our
local communities – One Team IPC Health.
We would like to acknowledge and thank
IPC Health’s Board Directors, executive and
leadership teams, staff and volunteers for an
excellent year and look forward to continuing
our journey to make this organisation a great
place to work and one where our clients
receive individual quality care from a range of
services provided by IPC Health.

George Kogios
IPC Health Board Chair

Jayne Nelson
IPC Health CEO
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OUR IMPACT
IPC Health cares for Melbourne’s West

67%

10,240

in new clients
to IPC Health
GP services

visits seen
by GPs

growth

more

300

more

child dental
visits than
last year

specialist
paediatrician
visits

17%
Making a
difference in our
clients' health

rate us
as good or
very good

43%

38%

more

96%

more

visits with
nurses

1,000

of clients

3,300

53%

growth
in new clients
to IPC Health
Home Care
Packages

18%
82%

of clients

are happy /
very happy
with the service

66%

of clients are
extremely likely to

recommend
us
to family
and friends
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Fabulous outcome from our
Outreach Dental Service

Jess is a 29 year old woman, who
attended our Outreach Dental
Service at Honey Hush Caravan
Park. She had extremely poor
dental health, all of her teeth
were either rotten or broken, her
gums were constantly bleeding
and she not only suffered from
the constant pain in her mouth
but as a result also constant
severe migraines.

Jess is absolutely
thrilled with the
outcome and
thanks everyone
involved
6

medicating with Panadol and other
migraine treatments for her whole adult
life. She has had no self-confidence, which
has affected her socially and in terms of
seeking employment, Jess did not think
any employer would take her on because
of her teeth.

She had been raised by her grandmother
until the age of 13 and was never taught
good oral hygiene, never brushed her teeth,
was given a can of coke every night before
bed and medicated nightly with Phenergan
to help her sleep. By the time she was 13
and returned to live with her mother, Jess
thought it was too late to do anything
about her teeth and didn’t really care by
that stage. Dental care was also perceived
to be too expensive and inaccessible.

Through our dental outreach service,
Jess had the initial consultation and was
referred to our Altona Meadows campus
for further treatment; all her teeth were
removed over several appointments and
then she was given a priority appointment
at our Hoppers Crossing campus for her
new dentures. Jess now is working at the
caravan park as their cleaner and would
be confident to look for work elsewhere,
if need be. Jess feels far more confident
socially, is eating foods she hasn’t been
able to eat for years and without pain. The
migraines have disappeared and she hasn’t
taken any form of medication for her mouth
since the treatment.

Jess has not been able to eat any solid
food since that early age due to the
pain it caused her. She has been self-

Jess is absolutely thrilled with the outcome
and thanked everyone at IPC Health that
has been involved in her journey.
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Advocating for our clients

How hard work, advocacy and a
team working together achieve
positive health outcomes for
our clients.
Chester is in his early sixties and just
two years ago, was still working fulltime.
However the amputation of his leg and
a fall that fractured his hip has changed
his life. Mourning the loss of his leg, and
his previous life, Chester is now wheelchair
bound. Everyday tasks such as shopping
are difficult. Now Chester has poorly
controlled diabetes, which is causing many
health problems, including a wound on his
remaining foot which puts him at risk of
losing his other leg.
Chester has been using a range of services
at our Deer Park campus, including a GP, a
Wound Nurse, a Podiatrist, a Dietitian, the
Pharmacist and a Diabetic Nurse Educator.
However, Chester was missing many of
8

his appointments and not measuring his
blood sugar level.
Robyn, an IPC Heath Diabetic Nurse
Educator, did not give up on Chester. She
urged him to take responsibility for his
health and advocated on Chester’s behalf
to set up a time with a Counsellor that
Chester could make.
Robyn helped to arrange the grouping of
Chester’s appointments so that he only
needs to come to IPC Health once a week,
saving him time and money. Chester’s
health is improving but there is still a way
to go. The aim is to do everything possible
at IPC Health for Chester to be considered
for a prosthetic for his leg. A great team
effort of everyone involved to provide
holistic care for a patient in need.
IPC Health’s work in relation to Chester has
been highly commended by a Registrar at
Western Health.

We offer a full
spectrum of care

WHO WE ARE

IPC Health fundamentally believes that communities are healthiest, and
burden and demand on a health system is lowest when we can help to:
Reduce the burden of disease

(the need for health care) by increasing
the number of people who do not report
a health condition (prevention and
health promotion)

Reduce the
demand for care

A

B

D

C

(through high primary
care, chronic disease
management and
self-care support)

Markedly improve health
literacy and e-health literacy,

by increasing the number
of people with a health problem
who do not appropriately seek care
(comprehensive self-care support)

We care for
Melbourne's
West

Decrease the number of
people with a health problem
who require care and
hospitalisation

especially amongst older people and
disadvantaged groups

Our Role
IPC Health’s role in achieving its purpose:

Our Vision

Our Purpose

To make the highest quality primary
health care accessible to all who need it.

IPC Health is a community owned
health service which exists so that:

Primary
prevention

Quality of
life support

Service
navigation

Secondary
prevention
and harm
reduction

Primary
health
treatment

Communities are healthy
and well
Individuals through a single
point of contact can connect
to a full spectrum of care
and support using consistent
approaches including those
of our partners

$
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Children

Young people

Adults

Elders

Health systems have low
burden, low demand and lower
costs with hospitals as a place
of last resort.
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WHERE WE
OPERATE

AND

PRINCIPLE
OUR
SERVICES
SITES
Counselling
General Mental Health
Family
Alcohol & Other Drug
Financial
Problem Gambling

IPC Health operates from six principle
sites located across Western Metro
Melbourne. Many of our clients come
from the surrounding areas. We also
deliver some outreach services meaning
we take health care and support services
to people in their own homes.

106 Station Road, Deer Park

Hume

1 Andrea Street, St Albans

General Health
GP / Doctor
Nurse
Oral Health / Dental
Refugee Health
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Health
Women’s Health / Sexual Reproductive Health

Allied Health
Melton
Moonee
Valley
Brimbank

Maribyrnong
Melbourne
Hobsons
Bay

122 Harvester Road, Sunshine

Wyndham

Nutrition and Dietetics
Occupational Therapy
Physiotherapy
Exercise Physiology
Podiatry
Speech Pathology
Audiology

Child, Youth and Family
Well @ Home
Our Outreach Clinical Coordination
program, known as Well @ Home is
about specialised short-term, sub-acute
management care for people 50 years
and over. They have aged related complex
health issues and are experiencing
functional or cognitive decline.
The Well @ Home service commenced
operations on 1 April this year. The team
consists of an Exercise Physiologist, Nurse
and Clinical Coordinators.
The Well @ Home team’s main focus is to
provide short term in-home service to help
clients access community services and to
remain well and independent at home.
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330 Queen Street, Altona Meadows
Once referred, clients are scheduled
an offsite assessment with one of the
Clinical Coordinators who undertake a
comprehensive clinical assessment. During
this assessment, current and ongoing needs
of the client are identified, including goals
and interventions required to achieve
desired outcomes. During the assessment,
the clients health needs will be discussed
and recommendations made as to what
other services the client would benefit from,
as well as facilitating clients to connect
with groups within their local community.

117-129 Warringa Crescent, Hoppers Crossing

Paediatrician
Child Occupational Therapy
Psychology for Children
Child Speech Therapy
Family Services
Healthy Mothers, Healthy Babies
Cradle to Kinder
Youth Health Nurse

Aged Care
Home Care Packages
Social Work
Well @ Home

Chronic Conditions
510 Ballan Road, Wyndham Vale

Cardiac Rehabilitation
Diabetes Education
Living Well
Social Prescribing
Needle and Syringe Program
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OUR
ACHIEVEMENTS
Dental Services
We treated:

Key Achievements in 2018/2019
Piloting the innovative
Social Prescribing
partnership program at
our Deer Park campus,
an integrated model of
care that links clinical care
and community services,
which is being co-designed
with staff, clients and
community partners.
Home Care Packages
program grew by 53%.
We closed the financial
year with 150 consumers.

Launch of our first
Reconciliation Action Plan.
Involvement in first stage
of innovative School
Readiness program in
Victoria. Our Allied Health
team have already
completed 1106 sessions
with 66 Kindergartens/
Child Care Centres across
Brimbank and Melton
areas, working with
educators and families
to help children prepare
for a successful transition
to school.

Introduction of a Staff
Wellbeing Program:
Learning to Relax
workshops, free weekly
yoga and pilates classes,
discounted gym access,
Employee Assistance
Program, and a wellbeing
fund for each campus to
spend based on what their
needs are.
Our Young Leaders of
the West successfully
launched their gambling
harm awareness video
campaign.
ICT upgrades: building
a new intranet, new high
speed internet connection,
desktop refresh project
with the server upgrade.
Our Winter Flu Vaccines
program saw a strong
increase in Flu Vaccinations
to clients at our GP Clinics,
with a total of 1300
vaccinations at Deer Park,
383 at Hoppers Crossing
and 510 at our Wyndham
Vale campus.

GP and Medical Services

990 (+17%) more children this year than
last year
Our first Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander
Women’s Health Day saw
9 women receiving Cervical
Cancer Screening checks
and 8 women receiving
Breast Cancer Screening,
as a result of participating
in the day.
First health centre in
Victoria to host the
IDEAS Van, a mobile
specialist eye centre for
Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islanders.
First flag raising
ceremony during National
Reconciliation week at our
Wyndham Vale campus.
New Gambler’s Help:
a revised team secured
$1.4 million funding per
year for three years,
submitted the new
Community Engagement
Plan to the Victorian
Responsible Gambling
Foundation which they
said was “one of the best”
and we’ve closed the
performance gap by 10%.

795 (+ 5%) more individuals (adult + child
total) this year compared to last year
347 (+13%) more Priority Category
Patients than last year
We grew:
our priority access client percentage by
11% year on year
We delivered:
1047 additional Dental Weighted Activity
Units (DWAU’s) via the Child Dental
Benefits Schedule (CDBS) this year
compared to last year
Our total DWAU output (Dental Health
Services Victoria + Child Dental Benefits
Schedule funded activity) was:
+ 1520 DWAU’s (+ 10%) higher than last year
Our chair utilisation rate was:
22% better than last year (93% vs 76%)
Our Smiles 4 Miles program delivered:
361 additional referrals (88% more)
compared to last year

10,240 (38%) more patient visits
seen by GP’s
3,333 (43%) more patient visits
seen by Nurses
A 16% increase in Infectious Diseases
Physician visits with refugee/asylum
seeker families
300 more (+18%) Specialist
Paediatrician visits
11,580 (+30%) more overall patients visits
seen through our GP and Spec Med services
A 67% growth in new clients to IPC
Health GP services (almost 850 more
than New Patients to our service during
this year versus last)
11,247 (+30%) in overall appointments
seen in the GP service in total (GP, Nurse,
Nurse Practitioner)

Allied Health
Total clients:
9,926
Number of appointments:
42,335

We supported

17,000
Dental clients

8,200
GP clients

9,900
Allied
Health
clients

across Brimbank, Hobsons Bay, Wyndham, Melton and Surrounds
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Engaging with our community
Victorian Health
Experience Survey

We care for
Melbourne's West

We received an outstanding result in the
Victorian Health Experience Survey (VHES)
this year. Our response rate was 40%
which is amazing and our overall client
experience is 96%. You can read more
about the VHES results and our actions
to improve our client experience in the
Quality Account section of this document.

We care for Melbourne’s West and we
want our communities to know. Research
data show us that many people in our
communities don’t know about IPC Health
and all of our services. So we wanted
to bring more awareness to existing
and future clients with this campaign in
shopping centres, on buses, at Footscray
train station, local radio stations, bus stops,
Victoria University, and also online on our
Google Business and Facebook pages.

Client Feedback
In the past year, 803 clients took the
opportunity to give us feedback through
the customer feedback survey on tablets at
our campuses.

As a result, we’ve seen an increase in
activity on our webpages and we’ve
successfully attracted new clients.
Watch out for phase two of our brand
awareness campaign in the west.

• 82.2% of clients who filled out the survey
were happy / very happy with the service
• 66.25% of people are extremely likely
to recommend IPC Health to family
and friends
What did we do well?

What could have been better?
Waiting time
to be seen
Level of care
Friendly staff

Listening to
our clients

Quick service
Easy to find
Parking
Waiting Room
comfort
Other
100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%
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Innovation and Partnerships
Social Prescribing
Social Prescribing is a partnership program
delivered by IPC Health with the North
Western Melbourne Primary Health Network,
Australian Health Policy Collaboration
at Victoria University and Brimbank City
Council which is being piloted at our Deer
Park campus and co-designed with staff,
clients and community partners.
Social Prescribing is an integrated model of
care that links clinical care and community
services. It is an innovative way of improving
health and wellbeing outcomes for the
community. It complements traditional
forms of medical and health care to help
our clients who have social and wellbeing
needs that can’t be met by the health
system. This could include things like not
eating well, finding it hard to exercise,
wanting to quit a habit that is making
someone feel bad, struggling with child

Time for a different approach and better service

care or parenting, housing or legal issues,
feeling lonely or wanting to connect to
people with similar interests.

Catherine has worked in the Hospital Admissions Risk Program (HARP) at IPC Health
for 6 years and started as one of our Wellbeing Coordinators in the innovative Social
Prescribing Project in March.

Identified clients are given social
prescriptions with their clinical prescriptions.
They are referred to a Social Prescribing
Wellbeing Coordinator who works with
the client to set personal goals and links
them accordingly to programs and services
in the community. A social prescription
can involve a variety of activities which
are typically provided by a voluntary or
community organisation and aims to
build participation, confidence and skills.
These activities could be volunteering,
arts activities, group learning, gardening,
befriending, cookery, healthy eating
advice and a range of sports.

As a HARP Care Facilitator she saw
hundreds of clients with avoidable hospital
presentations. The focus of Catherine’s
role was on bio-medical aspects of their
health, but often the client’s issues were
also of a socio-economic nature, e.g.
financial, legal or housing.

In its pilot’s phase, Social Prescribing
is available to clients from the
Brimbank community.

A ho listic ap pro ac h to im pro vin g
he alt h an d we llb ein g

“Social Prescribing – with its focus on
non-clinical issues that affect people’s
health – provides a different approach
and better service.”
“Social prescribing is a different way of
thinking about things and I expect to learn
a lot in my new role. My HARP background
has been great, I already understand
the physical determinants and now see
how the physical and socio-economic
determinants influence each other.”

helped people navigate the My Aged Care
and NDIS systems.
She found that people often are not aware
of all the opportunities and support available
in their local community. For example,
because people have always worked full
time, they don’t know about the local
neighbourhood house and its programs.
“It is great to have the time to research
support services, I have discovered more
and better services to refer clients to than
I was able to in my HARP role.”

Catherine has already seen close to 10
clients in the Social Prescribing pilot, referred
from the GP Clinic at Deer Park. One of these
is a former HARP client. Another client was
referred from a Diabetic Nurse Educator,
because the client’s financial problems were
influencing their health.
So far, Catherine has helped a client with
their superannuation, written support letters,
linked a client to social groups, helped
carers find support services for a parent with
dementia and for themselves as a carer and

Photo credit: NWMPHN. Photo by: Norm Oorloft.

John's* story
John was a regular visitor to his GP but his general health had recently deteriorated
meaning he was visiting more often.
John had presented to the clinic on
2 occasions recently complaining he could
not afford to purchase his medication.
His GP referred him to our new Social
Prescribing service.
▲
REFERRAL
GPs refer clients to
a Social Prescribing
program.

▲
CONSULTATION
Clients meet with
Community Link
Worker to discuss their
needs and goals.

▲
CONNECTION
Clients are linked
to local community
services and groups.

How does it work?
A GP or health provider can refer a patient to an
in-house “Community Link Worker” to discuss their
daily life, including things that act as barriers to
better health and wellbeing. Barriers could include
social isolation, unemployment, difficulty preparing
healthy food or low levels of exercise.
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The Community Link Worker can then discuss
a client’s situation with them, help them to set

▲
FOLLOW UP
Link workers stay in
touch to make sure the
services are working
for clients.

▲
CLOSING THE LOOP
Clients and Community
Link Worker talk to
their GP about how
things are going and
adjust if needed.

More broadly, one in four Australian adults
are lonely and more than half the population
feel they lack companionship.
Lonely Australians have significantly worse
health status (both physical and mental)
than connected Australians.
Who is involved?

John confided there were insufficient funds
remaining from his government support
payment once he had paid his rent and utility
bills, purchased food and transport to his
multiple medical appointments. John had a
long history of poor mental health along with
poorly controlled diabetes causing multiple
complications. He was deemed not fit for work
but his initial application for Disability Support
Payment had been rejected. He plead his
case on multiple occasions but was told
nothing could be done.

After listening to John and observing
how desperate he was, the Wellbeing
Coordinator wrote to his local MP to
highlight his case. A few days later the
Wellbeing Coordinator received a call
from the local MP’s office. They expressed
concern regarding John’s circumstances
and how it was impacting his health and the
burden this was placing on him personally
as well as on health services. They informed
John that his Disability Support claim would
be expedited.
His claim has been successful and as a
result he is able to live more independently
and in better health.
* John is not his real name.
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Young Leaders of the West
In partnership with the Victorian
Responsible Gambling Foundation (VRGF),
IPC Health led the Young Leaders of the
West (YLOTW) program, alongside the
Western Bulldogs Community Foundation
and Brimbank City Council.
The project enabled young people to
design and produce a youth specific
awareness campaign and promote it to
their peers, with the aim of addressing
gambling harm and reducing stigma for
young people to seek help.
An initial group of eight, very enthusiastic,
young people were recruited and
formed the YLOTW project group. The
young leaders participated in different
learning activities and heard from people
with a lived experience and Gamblers
Help Community Educators, presenting
information about different aspects of
gambling harm.
In 12 months, the young leaders
co‑designed and filmed three new
gambling harm prevention short video’s,
created a video that shares their thoughts
and feelings about the harms of gambling,
created a gambling awareness youth
art exhibition, facilitated workshops with

community groups, presented at the
2018 Gambling Harm Conference and
coordinated the launch of the new videos
and the art exhibition.
On 27 June, our Young Leaders of the West
successfully launched their gambling harm
awareness ads with a bang! The ads can
be seen on IPC Health’s Facebook page.
Thank you to Tanya Fletcher, Branch
Head of Prevention and Programs from
the Victorian Responsible Gambling
Foundation for coming down to celebrate
with us and watch the unveiling of the ads.
Thanks to the Western Bulldogs Community
Foundation and Brimbank City Council for
their support on this project.
Young Leader Juliet was successful
at acquiring employment from her
participation in the program and now
works within IPC Health’s Gamblers
Health Team.
IPC Health welcomes additional funding
of $400,000 over 4 years from the
VRGF, commencing 2019/2020. The
intention is to consult with the group
of young volunteers, build on successes
and possibly extend the network. The
YLOTW will align with our Gambler’s Help
community engagement work.

Quotes from young leaders

"IPC Health
provided the
skeleton (structure),
we provided the
flesh (ideas)"

“…gambling can affect
anyone. “My eyes were
opened to the very REAL
effects of gambling.”

“The facts and figures about
gambling were shocking to
begin with but watching the play
of lived experience seriously put
things into perspective in terms
of people’s lives being affected/
destroyed by gambling”.
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Reconciliation
Action Plan
As result of staff and community
working together, we launched our first
Reconciliation Action Plan REFLECT on
29 March 2019 at our Wyndham Vale
GP Super Clinic.
Our focus is on developing respectful
relationships and meaningful
opportunities with Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people.
It is also about a vision of solidarity and
shared history for all Australians.
The effects of more than 200 years of
dispossession, racism and discrimination
have left many Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander people with a shorter life
expectancy, and suffering from more
adverse life stressors across their lifetime
than all other non-Indigenous Australians.
IPC Health recognises the strength and
resilience capacity of all Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Peoples. As a health
service, as a community organisation
and as a workplace, we can make a
contribution to progress the National
Reconciliation effort by addressing the
root causes of such injustices and inequities.
It is about growing our organisation’s
cultural knowledge, understanding and
practice, along with identifying and
implementing key activities in partnership
with community. The Reconciliation
Action Plan helps us shine a light on
our organisation as being a culturally
competent, welcoming, and culturally
safe service for our clients and staff.
22

Dental Award
On 29 November, IPC Health along with
Dental Health Services Victoria (DHSV)
and DPV Health were awarded the 2018
Project of the Year Award at the Oral
Health Awards presented at the DHSV
General Meeting.
The Silver Diamine Fluoride Project that
was trialled at our St. Albans and Hoppers
Crossing campuses, has shown great
outcomes for children who struggle in
the chair and has significantly reduced
the number of patients requiring
general anaesthetic. The project was
even highlighted as one of the biggest
accomplishments of the year by Zoe
Wainer the Chair of the Board at DHSV.
This is a massive accomplishment from
the therapists who participated and
special congratulations to Christeen,
Houda and Deidre who all put their
hands up and actively promoted and
participated in the project.
Just one example of the exemplary care
being provided every day at IPC Health
and something of which we are really
proud of.

IPC Health High
Risk Foot Clinics an
example for others

Over the years the clinic has expanded
from 1 site at Hoppers Crossing to 5 sites
(St Albans, Sunshine, Deer Park, Altona
Meadows and Hoppers Crossing) and
runs multiple times a week.

IPC Health was invited to speak at
the 2018 National Lower Extremity
Amputation Prevention (LEAP)
Conference as one of the leading
providers of care for the high-risk foot in
community health. Our Senior Podiatrist
Ashlea spoke on the journey of developing
high-risk foot clinics at IPC Health.

It has improved access for our clients
with foot wounds to our service,
increased our networking with external
services as well as created a supportive
learning environment for our team. Most
importantly it has improved quality of
life outcomes for our clients through
coordinated care and a consistent service.

Many community health centres have
since made contact and are interested in
meeting with us to develop a similar clinic
at their community health centre.

The High-Risk Foot Clinic continues to
develop. GPs are now visiting clients within
the Podiatry consult at the High-Risk Foot
Clinic. This enables clients to receive a
more holistic approach to care as well as
easier access to antibiotics, pathology
and imaging as required.

The High-Risk Foot Clinic initially started
in 2010. It was an idea from a focus group
between podiatrists and clients who have
high-risk feet. The High-Risk Foot Clinic is
accessible for all clients who have a foot
wound. The clinic runs with 2 Podiatrists per
clinic room as well as the inclusion of other
Allied Health providers, Living Well team
members, and Counselling Services on an as
needs basis. At Hoppers Crossing we have
a Dietitian who is also funded to work in
the clinic 1 day a week. Many of the clients
receive shared care with local hospitals.

IPC Health High-Risk Foot Clinics continue
to work towards new national accreditation
standards with the aim to be one of the
first accredited High-Risk Foot Services in
Community Health.
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Smiles 4 Miles Awards
Well done to TRY Parkwood Green
Preschool and Acacia’s Children’s Centre
St Albans for receiving their Smiles 4
Miles awards. These are the second
and third early childhood centres to be
awarded with this certification, with
the assistance and guidance of IPC
Health Health’s Smiles 4 Miles Health
Promotion Coordinator Saira, since
starting the program in 2018.
Smiles 4 Miles is an initiative of Dental
Health Services Victoria (DHSV) which
aims to improve the oral health of
children and their families in high risk
areas across Victoria.
The program is implemented locally by
IPC Health, mostly in preschools.
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Cardiac Rehab
with a little extra
Ling was referred from St. Vincent’s
Hospital to IPC Health’s Cardiac
Rehabilitation program following his
heart attack and stent placement in
June 2018.

Making a difference
in Osteoarthritis
management
Our Physiotherapists have recently
introduced a new group at the Deer Park
campus aimed at helping people with
Osteoarthritis of the knee and hip.

During the Physical Activity talk, they learnt
about the COTA program (gym program
for over 50s) at Victoria University Werribee
Fitness Centre. Nicole (Exercise Physiologist)
met Ling, Pauline and Yichoo at the gym
and introduced Brooke (Victoria University
COTA staff). They learnt how to do their
exercise program while Yichoo interpreted
the complex information such as setting up
the machines and safety in the gym.

Participants attend education presentations
about the management of Osteoarthritis
and Physiotherapy supervised exercise
sessions where they learn safe, effective
exercises to manage their Osteoarthritis.
They are also encouraged to participate
in more functional exercises outside of the
program in order to achieve at least the 30
minutes of activity per day recommended
by the World Health Organisation.

The GLA:D program (aka Good Life with
osteoArthritis Denmark) was initially
developed in Denmark in 2013. The
Denmark researchers found participants
reported improvements in pain and
quality of life and increased levels of
physical activity continuing well after they
had completed the program. It was also
found to delay and/or prevent major knee
and hip surgery in some participants.

The first group of participants has recently
completed the program at IPC Health.
The feedback received so far has been
overwhelmingly positive. People who
thought that they were not able to exercise
have managed the hour long exercise
sessions. Many have reported feeling
stronger; one participant says her knee
feels less swollen and in better alignment.

Ling and Pauline can understand
basic English and are self-managing
their exercise program and setting up
equipment. They plan to attend 1-2 times
per week with support from Brooke and
other staff.

In partnership with La Trobe University
the outcome data collected from IPC
Health participants is being used to
grow the supporting evidence of the
effectiveness of this program.

Ling and his wife Pauline attended eight
weekly exercise and education sessions and
were supported by Mandarin interpreter
Yichoo. The education sessions included risk
factors, medications, stress and relaxation,
nutrition, physical activity, cardiac blues
and return to life.
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Halls Gap Trip
with Elders
IPC Health’s Aboriginal Health Team,
under the Healthy Kinships program,
have built a strong partnership with the
Aboriginal Community Liaison Officers
from Relationship Australia, to provide
opportunities for Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander people to engage in and
explore their connection to culture,
identity, kinship and Community.
These experiences have:
• directly enriched the health and
wellbeing of Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander clients who have participated
in them
• provided a sense of belonging and a
sense of Community to the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people of
Wyndham, Hobsons Bay and Brimbank
and
• raised the cultural responsiveness across
our organisation.

Providing a sense
of belonging and a
sense of community

It has supported many clients with their
social, emotional and spiritual wellbeing.
The group who attended demonstrated
a strong sense of camaraderie and
understanding of each other’s personal
situations. Around the campfire stories and
songs were shared from various community
members and their cultures. In particular,
memories include:
• A very shy community member sang
a Torres Strait Islander song from his
Country to the rest of the group.
• A group of men supporting and
encouraging each other to step up
with responsibilities that others tend
to do for them at home
• Sharing of childhood memories or
stories from family and culture; raised
levels of empathy and understanding
and respect for each other.

In November 2018, we took a group of 9
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people
to Halls Gap on a two night excursion.
During the trip, the group explored the
Grampians National Park and attended the
Brambuk Aboriginal Culture Centre, where
they engaged in a range of guided cultural
activities and reflections.
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OUR TEAM
Our Leadership Team

“I have learnt a lot about the roll
Physios have in the community.
I feel my future is brighter and
I am a more confident clinician
thanks to the Physio team here
at Deer Park.”

Item

Data 2018/2019

Female (average)
Male (average)
Ongoing (average)

Leading the way in the
future of Allied Health
Final year and third year Physiotherapist
students completed their placement at
IPC Health at the end of December 2018.
Clinical Student Coordinator David with the
support of the Physiotherapy Team delivered
another successful block of students.

Our Staff

Fixed Term (average)

65
329
89

Full Time (average)

160

Jay, one of the students, said that this
placement had really opened his eyes
regarding Allied Health.

Part Time (average)

258

Volunteer (average)

6

Contractor (average)

4

Across our Allied Health teams, we continue
every year to provide 5-star level training and
education to the professionals of the future.

Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Employees (average)

3

CALD Employees (average)

6

Head Count (average)

423

EFT (average)

323

Personal Days Absent per EFT
(average)
28

358.75

10
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HealthWest Partnership
Standards for Workforce
Mutuality
We have signed up to take part in the
Workforce Mutuality Standards pilot
program with HealthWest Partnership.
Workforce Mutuality Standards are a
new set of standards being developed
by HealthWest Partnership. Workforce
mutuality describes the extent to which
the diversity of an organisation or a sector’s
workforce reflects the diversity of the
community it serves. It also describes an
organisation or a sector’s responsiveness
to the needs of a diverse community.
These Standards are based on three
main principles:
• Principle 1: Equity in employment
is a right
All people in the community have
the right to access fair and equitable
pathways to employment and
professional growth.
• Principle 2: Diversity is an
organisational strength
An organisation that is more inclusive
and reflective of the diversity of the
community is more in touch with
community needs, provides better services
and will have a more highly-skilled,
healthier and innovative workforce.
• Principle 3: Partnering with community
improves consumer outcomes
Organisations can meet the specific
needs of diverse communities and
improve overall consumer experience
and outcomes by partnering with
consumers and organisations from
diverse communities.
Our People and Culture and Quality,
Governance and Risk teams have
been undertaking a self-assessment
and evaluation of the standards and
presenting on our experiences along with
four other community organisations.

We received some lovely feedback from
a client about our Prosthetic (Denture)
Services team.
“I am writing on behalf of my elderly
mother. Firstly, I would like to comment
on the exemplary service my mother
received from Daniel. Her case was
a difficult one and he tackled it with
ease and logically. He has excellent
interpersonal skills, treating my mother
with the upmost respect and care.
His problem solving skills are rigorous
in order to find the best solution.
He’s highly professional and certainly
an asset to IPC Health. Daniel takes
great pride in his work and strives for
excellence. And that is exactly what we
received. It was a pleasure taking my
mother to her appointments because
we felt comfortable and confident in
Daniel’s abilities. IPC could certainly do
with more ‘Daniels’. Thanking you for the
excellent service.”

1. Consumer, Carer and
Community Participation
The Victorian Health Experience Survey (VHES) was held at the end of 2018. The focus of
the survey are adult clients (16 years and older) who receive community and primary health
services either at our campuses or through outreach programs.
1472 questionnaires were sent to clients and 586 questionnaires were received, a response
rate of 40%, one of the highest in Victoria. Our overall client experience rate was 96%.

1.1 Report on actions arising
from VHES results
Q42: Were you given any information
(e.g. leaflets) in your language?
Result: 39%
(which is lower than our result of 43.72%
in 2017 and lower than the state average
of 50.24%)

IPC Health Prosthetic Services
“Prosthetists Daniel, Hoan, Steven and
all of the assistants that work with them
are committed to providing high quality,
comfortable dentures that can change
people’s lives.”
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QUALITY
ACCOUNT

"Excellent service"

Action: We have identified that we need
more pamphlets in other languages to
provide pertinent information to our
clients. We have looked at our data to
understand the most common languages
of our clients and this information will
help us to know what languages to use.
As part of our reception improvement
project we are sourcing information to be
translated into the most common used
languages, and accessing information
that is already translated. We will make
this information available to our clients in
all of our waiting areas.

1.2 Capacity building of
consumers, carers and
community members
Young Leaders of the West
• Young Leaders initially were trained in
empathy and learnt about the problems
associated with gambling harm.
• They created a television advertising
campaign and learnt about all the steps
from concept, to storyboard, to script
writing to filming.
• Employment of one Young Leader to the
Gamblers Help West team at IPC Health.
• They visibly increased their personal
self-confidence to share their opinions,
ideas and do presentations. They are
also exploring new opportunities: 2 of the
Young Leaders have secured new jobs
and 2 have embraced new opportunities
to share their lived experience of
gambling harm with a wider audience.
3 of the Young Leaders have featured
in state-wide publications, and 3 copresented at the biannual Victorian
Gambling Harm Conference.
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Quote from Young Leaders:

Our Volunteers
Big Thank You to Ladies Auxiliary

“Yea, we’re besties now.”
“The biggest impact’s been personal.”
• The Young Leaders learnt how to
project manage and how to organise
and implement a launch event.
Quote from a Young Leader:
“For me it’s been planning and having
deadlines…. having deadlines has been
a learning, and having foundations to
hold that together… Whether we have an
agenda, we’re having a meeting, we’re
running to time, and it’s been a real key
learning. I’ve watched how Karen and
Steph have facilitated that and say ‘let’s
move on’ rather than ‘let’s delve into this
a bit longer… facilitation skills.”

We received a donation from the Deer
Park Ladies Auxiliary (knitting ladies) for
the purchase of an Omron Blood Pressure
Monitor and 8 Electronic Scales for the
Deer Park campus.
As a sign of our appreciation and a
thank you for their ongoing support of
IPC Health, in particular the Deer Park
Campus, and for their generous donation,
we provided a morning tea for the weekly
group on 1 August.

Continuous
community input

Community Advisors for Social Prescribing

Committee members

IPC Health has established a Reference
Group for the Social Prescribing Project to
create partnerships and to provide support
and guidance for the development and
sustainability of the service.

• Community members are members
on our committees and help us make
decisions to improve our programs and
services; this includes:
- Rainbow Tick working group
- 2 community members
- Quality Improvement Group
- The Social Prescribing Community
Reference group has a range of
representatives working together to
better inform the development of our
Social Prescribing program, including
health professionals, community
services within Brimbank, and a
range of community members.
- The Reconciliation Action Plan Working
group with 3 community members:
Uncle Gary, Uncle Mervyn and Aunty
Marlene – all 3 helped us to launch our
Reconciliation Action Plan in March
2019 and continue to support the
implementation of this plan.

Members include representatives from local
community service organisations, Brimbank
community members and IPC Health staff.
Having community members included in
the reference group provides valuable input
to ensure the Social Prescribing program is
participant focused.

Janice and Mary from the IPC Health knitting group have volunteered
to be part of the Social Prescribing Reference Group
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Training
• Social Prescribing Project officer Dinna
and community member Vincenza
participated in a training program
called Collaborative Pairs.
• Community members were invited
to attend our Prevention of Violence
Together training.
• Cardiac Rehabilitation at Hoppers
Crossing Campus is now incorporating
Cardio-Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)
for clients and their family as part of
their education sessions. Participants
and their families often worry about
living with heart disease and felt
reassured that they would now know
how to handle this type of emergency.

Celebrating Partnerships
IPC Health has had a long association
with newly arrived refugee groups.
This has seen community involvement
with the Former Yugoslav community,
Afghan and Iraqi community, the South
Sudanese community and other African
communities in the past, and a 10 year
history with the Chin Burmese community
in Brimbank, mostly in Sunshine.
The Mai Poi Chin Burmese playgroup
celebrated its 10 year anniversary in
2018 and our Refugee Health Nurse,
Marie attended on behalf of our
Refugee Health Program.

Support to refugee
community groups

The anniversary gathering highlighted the
strength of the principle of partnerships
between the many agencies that support
such a vulnerable group. The value of
community based groups to meet the
everyday issues of isolation for women
at home with young children in a foreign
country can’t be underestimated. Well
over 100 women would have been
involved in this group at some time and
an ever increasing number of children.

Community Health
Nurse at Sexual Assault
Multidisciplinary Centre
IPC Health are one of the service agencies
of the new Sexual Assault Multidisciplinary
Centre (MDC) in Wyndham providing a
full time Community Health Nurse to work
together with other agencies such as
Victoria Police, Sexual Offences and Child
Abuse Investigation Teams, DHHS Child
Protection, Centres Against Sexual Assault
(CASA), Gatehouse, Women’s Health West
and Family Violence Unit.
The aim is to provide client-centred,
integrated and a holistic response to children
and adults who have experienced sexual
assault in an environment which provides
safety, support and access to justice.

This group evolved from a play group that
had intensive involvement initially from
IPC Health through a combined effort
of our Refugee Health Team and Health
Promotion Team. Other agencies also
became involved.

Our Community Health Nurse has assisted
in bridging the gap to health care. Lack
of knowledge about health conditions,
treatment and access can create multiple
barriers to optimising an individual’s
health. The Community Health Nurse role
is increasing the accessibility through
supported communication, providing
service education and advocacy.

The key figure in this has been a
community leader, Nguri, who continues
to have links with our Refugee Health
team through the many referrals going
both ways. Nguri worked for many years
with IPC Health staff both in a paid
capacity through On Call Interpreting
Service and in a voluntary capacity.

The individuals that the Community Health
Nurse supports are highly complex that
require a highly skilled specialist nurse,
able to effectively engage and empower
vulnerable individuals that may have been
impacted by trauma. For 2018/2019, the
Community Health Nurse has engaged and
assisted 28 new individuals in the program.
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Active

BRIMBANK
Active Brimbank
IPC Health is interested in ways to maintain
health and not just how to recover from
chronic disease. Active Brimbank supports
individuals and community groups to
create and sustain positive physical
activity habits. The project also emphasises
volunteering to develop skills and promote
social connectedness.
Active Brimbank Project partners
(Department of Health and Human
Services, Spectrum, MiCare Ltd, Brimbank
City Council, Good Shepherd Australia
New Zealand, RecLink (new)) successfully
engaged with culturally and linguistically
diverse community groups in St Albans,
Sunshine and Deer Park to encourage
community-led project submissions for
participation in Active Brimbank.
The project has successfully engaged
and supported 9 community groups,
and over 100 participants in Brimbank to
take action to increase participation in
physical activity. Each community group
was allocated between $1000 and $1500
to realise their project idea.
Projects included:
Team Lit engaged Rugby Victoria
to run skills acquisition training and
engaged ACE to participate in a one day
boxing program with the new skills now
incorporated in their weekly programming.
Walking Bus, a walk to school program,
delivered in partnership with St Albans
Heights Primary School. The group
worked with Brimbank City Council to
ensure the route meets safety guidelines.
The volunteers have also been trained in
engagement with parents, students and
the general public.
Spectrum Swimming Program is
targeted at young people from new and
emerging communities who engage with
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Spectrum Migrant Services and aims to
build confidence in the water. Victoria
University Leisure Centre facilitated
the swimming lessons and offered free
additional classes to participants who
graduated from the training.
The Community Soccer Hub scaled up
the Communities League from 8 to 12
participating groups with up to 240
people engaged in this 14 week program
played during the winter. This league has
addressed key barriers to participation:
access to a venue, relaxed entry
requirements for players and teams and
a welcoming and inclusive environment.

1.3 Provision of Accredited
Interpreters
Occasions of Service
(both face to face
and telephone)
In house

9966

Farsi

194

Vietnamese

688

Arabic

2088

Burmese

6996

External
(95 discreet languages)

6173

We aim to employ staff from our local
area, from the same cultural and linguistic
backgrounds as our community to better
service our clients.

1.4 Improving the quality
of care of people with
a disability
NDIS Transition
We closed our Disability Services program
at the end of March 2019. We assisted
clients with transitioning to NDIS through
Case Management, by the provision of
support, liaison with service providers and
advocating on behalf of our clients to
attain the level of support they require to
meet their care needs.

Speech Pathology
client training staff
The North West Regional Communication
Service is a program that aims to build the
knowledge and skills of community services
and their staff to enable them to effectively
communicate with individuals who have
communication difficulties/disabilities
and they provide training and resource
development to various services and their
staff to achieve this.
Donna, a client of the Speech Pathology
Service at IPC Health, has been participating
in these training sessions and advocating
for those with little or no speech to access
community services with ease.
The North West Regional Communication
Service has recently partnered with the
Royal Melbourne Hospital – Royal Park
Campus to present Communication Access
Training to new members of its staff. The
aim of the training was to equip new staff
members with the skills and knowledge
required to communicate with individuals
with complex communication needs.
This could not have been done without
the help and courage of Donna, our
Communication Access Consultant.
Donna experienced a stroke 2 years
ago which left her unable to speak.
Since this event, she has been using her

iPad, specifically the app ‘Proloquo2Go’,
gestures, photos, and writing to
communicate with her friends, family
and members of the community.
Donna played a major role in delivering
communication access training to the
staff at Royal Melbourne Hospital (RMH).
She began by sharing her personal
experiences after her stroke. This included
her frustration and isolation when
individuals could not communicate with
her successfully and the sadness she feels
when individuals treat her differently.
She also shared her expertise regarding
the importance of having strategies and
alternative communication methods
in place in order to foster successful
communication interactions. Staff at
the RMH marveled at her proficiency
in using the Proloquo2go app and also
discussed ways in which they could improve
their current communication boards to
better suit the needs of those who have
communication disabilities/difficulties.
Donna has a new-found confidence in
sharing her story to individuals in various
settings that interact with individuals
who have complex communication
needs. She continues to present to these
individuals in order to enhance their skills in
communicating successfully with those who
have communication difficulties/disabilities.
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2. Quality & Safety

We seek feedback from our clients in a
variety of ways through hardcopy feedback
forms located in our waiting rooms, our
electronic customer feedback system,
the Victorian Health Experience Survey
(VHES), Google my Business, our IPC Health
Facebook page and Messenger, our IPC
Health Website, community participation
in committees, and community projects
involving co-design.
Our Quality and Risk team has revised
the client feedback forms and the
‘Your feedback matters’ posters.
We have introduced ‘You Said, We
Listened’ posters in our waiting rooms
to inform our clients how IPC Health
has responded to client feedback.
Performance Data
We received more compliments than
complaints with a total of 119 compliments
and 71 complaints.
2018/19 Compliments
and complaints
30
25

The past year, we saw more occurrences of
people using drugs around our St Albans
campus. This was a growing issue with
more staff having interactions with drug
users and being adversely affected by the
presence of drug affected people.
In a campus meeting, the issues were
discussed with staff and management.
The following steps were taken:
• Clarity on roles and responsibilities and
reinvigoration of staff buddy system
• Updates on safety procedures
• Staff training in responding to clients
that are substance affected and Needle
and Syringe Program (NSP) training
• Client feedback approach (asking clients
how they would like to be treated)
• Door lock for all-abilities bathroom
• Placement of NSP bins
• Lighting and CCTV
• Security fencing and gates for staff
car park and staff yard
Drug Awareness and Managing
AOD Behaviours Training
17 Participants in the training

20
15

0

5
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Compliments

Complaints

4

POST

3
PRE

2

POST
PRE

1

In general, most of the compliments
received were for great service provision
and treatment from our clinical staff.
Our internal feedback process ensures
all compliments are passed on to staff
to recognise their contribution to the
client’s experience.
Complaints are generally related to the
following areas:
• Service provision
• Appointments
• Infrastructure/facilities
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How beneficial
did you find
the training

How knowledgeable
were you regarding
drug use pre and
post training

How knowledgeable
did you feel regarding
AOD client behaviours
pre and post training

NSP Training Evaluation
12 participants in the training

Post training, how
would you rate your
overall confidence
in responding to a
client who may appear
substance affected and
presents at IPC Health
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were you about the
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The number of reported incidents has
reduced compared to the previous years
which have been a continuing trend. IPC
Health has not recorded any sentinel
events in 2018/2019.
The most frequently reported incidents
are Clinical Incidents (87), followed by
Occupational Health & Safety (OH&S) (69)
and Hazards (68). All incidents undergo
review by the Manager and Quality and
Risk team and are reported quarterly to
the Quality Improvement Group (QIG),
OH&S Committee and Board Clinical
Governance and Risk Committee.
Incident themes are analysed to identify
opportunities to improve our process
and systems and ultimately our client’s
experience. The quality improvements are
reported back to the governing committees.

10
5

Incidents/1000 Appointments 2016-2019

2.2 Action taken to
improve physical and
psychological safety
for staff
Number of Incidents

2.1 Feedback and Complaints
Mechanisms

2.3 Adverse Events

Post-training, how
would you rate your
overall confidence in
attending to NSP clients

The most common OH&S incidents (OH&S,
Hazard and Other incidents) reported
related to environment, security, equipment
and occupational violence and aggression
(OVA). All front line and clinical staff are
trained to manage and de-escalate
occupational violence and aggression.
Our Emergency Management Plan (EMP)
underwent major review in March 2018 and
a Code Grey emergency code was added
as a supportive code in the event of actual
or potential violence, aggression, abusive
or threatening behavior that creates a risk
to the health and safety of staff and where
staff require a support person.

IPC Health have investigated and
addressed two incidents through in depth
case reviews that have improved our
quality and safety processes.
• A Refugee Health client presented to
our GP clinic for immunisation. The client
presented to Client Service staff but
was not entered into the computer as
arrived nor was the correct process for
identifying the client followed. The GP
called in a family group of clients and the
client went in to the GP with the group.
It is not uncommon that Refugee clients
present along with the family group. The
client was immunised.
It was identified that GP Clinic staff
were in the process of changing over
to a new client database and were
getting used to the new booking
system and that the approved client
identifiers were not used, firstly
at presentation and then prior to
immunisation. There was no adverse
harm as the client required the same
immunisations as another client the
doctor thought he was seeing. Staff
was given extra training on the new
client database and refreshed on the
three approved client identifiers –
Name, Address and Date of Birth.
This is why every time a client attends
an IPC Health service, staff will ask you
your name, address and date of birth,
regardless of how often or how long you
have been coming to IPC Health.
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• In another incident, a family of five
Refugee clients attended the GP for
immunisations. The family entered
the treatment room together and
the procedure was explained via an
interpreter to the family. The Nurse
prepared the vaccinations according
to immunisation schedules by placing
vaccines in individual kidney dishes.
Following immunisation, the used
syringes were placed back in the
individual kidney dishes and placed on
a high shelf whilst the Nurse completed
required documentation. After the Nurse
completed this task, she reached up
to the first kidney dish and sustained
a needle stick injury. It is procedure to
immediately dispose of sharps after use
to prevent needlestick/sharps injuries.
The sharp’s disposal procedure was
reinforced with the Nurse and there
was no adverse harm to the Nurse.

2.4 Accreditation
Currently IPC Health is fully accredited for
Home Care Standards, National Safety
and Quality in Healthcare Standards
for Dental Services and Human Services
Standards but will be re-assessed in
October 2019.
IPC Health undertook one accreditation
for Deer Park GP Clinic this year in June
against the Royal Australian College of
General Practitioner Standards for general
practices (5th edition) and is accredited
as a general practice for the next 3 years.
Although Deer Park GP clinic had no major
non conformities the following areas were
identified as non-compliance issues:
• The GP practice should add information
security to the Deer Park GP Clinic
Business Continuity Plan. IPC Health
also needs to develop an IT manual
as a practice reference.

• Recording the address from which
pharmacy the drug was obtained and
the address of the patient receiving the
medication in the S8 drug book.
• Practice staff should complete training
for administration and storage of oxygen
and liquid nitrogen that includes an
understanding of associated risks.
Action was taken and the non-compliance
issues addressed within the 20 day
timeframe and Deer Park GP Clinic was
granted full accreditation.

2.5 Quality improvement
Report on actions arising
from VHES results:
Accessing health service
Q9. Do you think the amount of time you
usually spend in the waiting area before
your appointment is about right?

Result: 68%
(which is higher than our result of 67% in 2017
but lower than the state average of 78%)
Consumer feedback from the VHES tells us
you think the amount of time spent in the
waiting room is too long.
Action: We are committed to improving client
experience, we aim to reduce your waiting
time by booking the most appropriate
appointment for you, but sometimes medical
emergencies happen resulting in you waiting
longer than expected.
We are improving our waiting rooms through
our Reception Improvement Project to make
your wait more comfortable. This will include
painting, new floor coverings, new seating,
and more access to more relevant information
and brochures. We have introduced Tonic on
Demand on our TV’s in our waiting rooms with
health promotion messages tailored to our
clients’ health care needs.

Improving
the client
experience
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Report on actions arising
from VHES results:
Environment & Facilities
Q10. How clean was the health service?
Result: 73%
(which is higher than our result of 69% in 2017
but lower than the state average of 80%)
IPC Health VHES feedback told us that you
felt the cleanliness of our health service
could be better.
Action: IPC Health has tendered out
our cleaning contract to a new cleaning
company, who are experienced in
cleaning healthcare settings. Regular
cleaning audits are conducted to monitor
cleanliness and ensure a high level of
cleanliness is sustained over time.

Infection Control
Staff training
IPC Health recognises the importance of
infection prevention and control and has
approved one of our Quality and Risk staff
to formally gain a Certificate in Infection
Prevention and Control.
The Graduate Certificate in Infection
Prevention and Control is recognised
by the Australasian College for
Infection Prevention and Control as a
core component of recognition as an
Advanced Credentialed Infection Control
Professional (CICP-AQuality and Safety).

Staff immunisation
The Staff Immunisation Procedure
underwent major review and is now called
the Immunisation for Health Care Workers
Procedure. An implementation project
is underway to improve our process of
collecting, storing and reviewing staff
immunisation status.
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Processes and Procedures
This year IPC Health has reviewed a number
of processes and procedures to enhance
quality and safety of our clients and staff:

Emergency Management Plan
• Further review of Emergency
Management Plan (EMP) and fire and
evacuation site drills scheduled annually.
• Learning Management System online
module updated to reflect EMP changes.
• Process improvements underway to Code
Blue (Medical Emergency) including
equipment, role clarification and
practical drills.
• Addition of Respond First Aid code in
response to minor injuries including soft
tissue injuries but excluding collapse and
cardiac arrest (Code Blue).
• Code Blue response kits are under
development for each campus. The kits
will hold the following equipment in one
emergency bag:
- BP machine
- Blood glucose machine
- Gloves
- Small sharps container
- Glucogel
- Jelly beans
- Long acting Carbohydrate
- Single use ice pack
- Code Blue lead tabard
- Code Blue scribe tabard
• First Aid Scenarios to consolidate and
promote confidence in staff following
their First Aid training.

Information Sharing Scheme
New procedure to meet legislation in the
Integrated Individual, Child and Support
service and Alcohol and Other Drugs
services regarding information sharing
and family violence, as these services are
recognised as information sharing entities.

Clinical Governance Framework

Ties and lanyards

Refreshed to include Community Services
Quality Framework:

Where possible, the wearing of lanyards
and neckties should be avoided as evidence
indicates these pieces of clothing may
facilitate the transmission of infection. The
implementation of this recommendation
has been endorsed by the Quality
Improvement Group and will be applied
to all client facing staff. Lanyards will be
replaced with magnetic name badges.

• A report is written to the Board Clinical
Governance and Risk Committee, every
quarter, under the following Community
Services Quality Framework headings:
- Leadership & culture
- Client and family participation
- Workforce
- Best practice
- Risk management

3. Comprehensive Care
3.1 Continuity
Report on actions arising from
VHES results: Your experience
with health workers
Q15. Did the health workers you saw
introduce themselves and their role?
Result: 83%
(which is higher than our result of 79.16%
in 2017 but lower than the state average
of 86.65%)
Response to the VHES survey tells us that
IPC Health staff don’t always introduce
themselves.
Action: As a result IPC Health has
introduced name badges to clearly identify
staff, this is in addition to customer service
training for all staff.

Report on actions arising from
VHES results: Teamwork
Q25. Were there times when you had to
repeat information that should be in your
record at this health service?
Result: 65%
(which is higher than our result of 58.38%
in 2017 but lower than the state average
of 70%)
We are committed to providing safe quality
care. The VHES results told us that you had
to repeat information that should be at our
health service. Staff are required to identify
clients every time by asking your Name,
Address and Date of Birth. This is to make
sure we are treating the correct person
every time, so you receive the treatment
you require.
Action: IPC Health will make sure clients are
aware of why we ask these same questions
all the time. Posters will be made stating
you will be asked at each presentation to
repeat important identification details to
ensure your safety.

3.2 Action taken to improve
service experience for
a particular community
health priority population
Assertive outreach and placebased community development to
our most vulnerable communities
We continue to demonstrate our
expertise and leadership in community
development leading on placebased initiatives supporting our most
vulnerable communities.
IPC Health has developed a strong
reputation as a leader in the homeless
sector with previous success leading
the Half Moon and Hobsons Bay
Caravan Park closures, where no
resident was left homeless.
We work together with partner agencies
to advocate on behalf of residents to
secure affordable, sustainable, safe and
appropriate housing.
Outcomes at Paisley Park Estate
So far, the project has engaged with
125 units across 7 streets.
Our priorities for this project include
improving mental health, preventing
violence and injury, social connectedness,
sense of belonging and capacity building.
Project partners include cohealth,
Wintringham Specialist Aged Care, Bolton
Clarke, West Justice Community Legal
Service and Hobsons Bay City Council.
Additional partners and key stakeholders
include DHHS Population Health and
Community Wellbeing, SASHS Network,
Mercy Mental Health – Saltwater and
Altona North Primary School.
48 health, mental health, housing, tenancy
and legal service connections have been
actioned on behalf of residents, through
direct service provision, referrals and
advocacy. 32 community led activities have
been implemented and 6 residents have
been supported to actively participate in
local volunteering activities.
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Outcomes at BP Caravan Park

School Readiness

Partners and key stakeholders include
cohealth, Wyndham City Council,
Consumer Affairs Victoria, Bolton Clarke,
Department of Health and Human
Services, Tenants Union of Victoria,
Unison, Uniting Wyndham, Laverton
Community and Integrated Services,
West Justice Community Legal Service
and Housing for the Aged Action Group.

School Readiness is a new initiative being
rolled out in Kindergartens across the state
from 2019. This includes long-day care
centres running Kindergarten programs.

During the life of the project, 57 residents
requested support with primarily housing,
but also health, mental health, material
aid, financial support, My Aged Care
assessments, legal and tenancy issues.
There are 16 long term households left on
site, 9 of these households, comprising
12 residents, are still being supported
through the project to various degrees.
Honey Hush Caravan Park Dental
Outreach Program
IPC Health has been supporting cohealth
to engage with the residents to ascertain
their housing and health support needs.
These residents are experiencing housing
insecurity, often mental health issues, social
isolation, financial disadvantage, limited
public transport options, food insecurity
and disengagement from local services.
One of the significant issues identified by
residents was access to dental services
for themselves and their families.
In collaboration with cohealth, we
developed a dental outreach program
for the residents, providing onsite dental
screenings, with any follow up dental
appointments made available at our
Altona Meadows campus.

The intent of the funding is to provide
additional support to children who need help
to reach school developmentally ‘on track’.
This program focuses on three priority areas
in development:
1. Communication (language development)
2. Wellbeing (social and emotional
regulation)
3. Access and inclusion.
Part of the School Readiness Program
involves an innovative approach which
sees Allied Health Professionals deliver
high quality education, coaching and
case consultations to educators and
families to build their capacity to support
children. IPC Health Speech Pathologists,
Developmental Psychologists and
Occupational Therapists work closely with
Kindergartens and community members
in Brimbank and Melton to help children
prepare for Primary School.
This innovative program is a first in Australia
and IPC Health have been involved in the
first stage implemented in Victoria. While
we are only six months in, our Allied Health
team have already completed 1106 sessions
with 66 Kindergartens/Child Care Centres
across Brimbank and Melton areas, working
with educators and families to help children
prepare for a successful transition to school.
The program is only young but we are
already seeing some positive results and
building strong relationships with educators.

This program received funding from
Dental Health Services Victoria.
19 residents were part of the program,
including 5 children, all requiring much
needed dental treatment.
See also Jess’s story on page 6 and 7.
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Helping children
prepare for
Primary School

4. Statewide Plans and Statutory Requirements
Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Health
The Aboriginal Health Promotion and
Chronic Care (AHPACC) funding received
from the Department of Health and
Human Services continues to provide
enormous value to IPC Health and to
the growing Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Community in Melbourne’s West,
where there is no Aboriginal Community
Controlled Health Service in operation.

Aboriginal Access Worker
The Aboriginal Access Worker has been
fundamental to our success and growth
as a culturally safe mainstream health
service. IPC Health has been able to
create strong and trusted partnerships
with various Aboriginal organisations like
Victoria Aboriginal Child Care Agency;
Wyndham Aboriginal Community Centre
Committee, Moondani Balluk (Victoria
University’s Aboriginal Academic unit),
Wathaurong Community co op and
Kirrup Aboriginal Cooperation.
The Aboriginal Access Worker continues
to strengthen relationships between IPC
Health and the Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander community, in particular in
providing opportunities for engaging in
and exploring their connection to culture,
identity, kinship and Community.
These experiences have:
• directly enriched the health and
wellbeing of Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander clients who have participated
in them
• provided a sense of belonging and a
sense of Community to the Aboriginal
people of Wyndham, Hobsons Bay
and Brimbank
• raised the cultural responsiveness
across our organisations.

Stakeholders
IPC Health hosted an Aboriginal Health
Forum in December for stakeholders, in
response to the closure of the Gathering
Place, a former health service for Aboriginal
people in Werribee. The forum was an open
platform for stakeholders to raise concerns
for the local Aboriginal people and highlight
opportunity for collaboration and support.
25 stakeholders from 10 agencies attended,
including: Victorian Aboriginal Child Care
Agency (VACCA), Wyndham City Council,
Rural Workforce Agency Victoria (RWAV),
Department of Health and Human Services
(DHHS), North Western Melbourne Primary
Health Network (NWMPHN), Victorian
Aboriginal Health Service (VAHS) and the
Mercy Hospital.

Specialised Health Clinics
In 2019, we ran a number of specialised
health clinics for Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander people (adults and children)
at our Wyndham Vale clinic.
•
•
•
•
•

Podiatry
Diabetes Nurse Education
Paediatrics
Speech Therapy
Optometry

Look Out Launch
IPC Health, Rural Workforce Agency Victoria
(RWAV) and The Fred Hollows Foundation
launched the Look Out Project at our
Wyndham Vale campus on 15 May, a first
for Victoria.
Look Out is an initiative to raise awareness
about the importance of looking after our
eyes, managing diabetes and enhancing
the current service delivery of diabetes
retinopathy treatment for Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander communities.
As part of this initiative, the Indigenous
Diabetes Eye Assessment Screening (IDEAS)
Van, a mobile treatment facility, was onsite
for community members to view and meet
the eye care team who will be working in
the IDEAS Van.

Digital Retinography System (DRS) Camera
Thanks to partners at the IDEAS Van and
Rural Workforce Agency of Victoria (RWAV),
we now house a Digital Retinography
System (DRS) Camera at Wyndham Vale.
This camera is able to take images of the
eye to identify early eye changes associated
with diabetic retinopathy. Images are
sent to an ophthalmologist for review and
provide a report for the client’s GP.

The IDEAS Van will visit our Wyndham Vale
campus every two months.
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Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Women Health Day
IPC Health in collaboration with North
Western Melbourne Primary Health Network,
hosted a Women’s Health Day for Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Women on 14
March as part of the Community-led
Cancer Screening Project.
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people
have been identified at a national level for
being less likely to be screened for bowel,
cervical and breast cancer for women and
prostate and bowel cancer for men, than
non-Indigenous Australians.
The event was hosted just after
International Women’s Day. Our focus was
about giving women time out to think of
themselves and their health and wellbeing.
Too often women mistakenly put the
care of others ahead of their own; but we
can’t care for others if we do not care for
ourselves. We can save lives by promoting
and encouraging women over 40 years of
age to have regular cancer screening and
health checks.
Over 49 Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander women attended the event;
enjoyed the activities, spoke to health
professionals and signed up for screening
services to promote early identification
and intervention.
Prior to the Women’s Health Day, the
Aboriginal Access Worker took a small
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group of four Aboriginal Women to
BreastScreen Victoria for checks, the
experience was very empowering for them
to do as a group, so much so they became
breast screening champions. They were
invited to be speakers at the Women’s
Health Day and encouraged other
Aboriginal women to “get their breasts
checked”. This encouragement provided
some demand for others in attendance to
seek our support in accessing BreastScreen
Victoria. As a result an initiative was
developed to take small groups of
Aboriginal women to the BreastScreen
Victoria clinic in Werribee for checks.
Two women received Cervical Cancer
Screening checks, on the day, another two
women made appointments for another
time; and a further five expressed interest
in making an appointment. Eight women
received breast cancer screening as a
result of their participation in the event.
Learnings:
• Creating time out for women is
important for them to consider their
health needs
• There was an increased interest in group
breast screening sessions so we hope to
have more sessions in the future.
• More Aboriginal women have been
screened due to the support that the
group sessions provided.

Creating time
out for women
is important for
them to consider
their health needs

Striving for Rainbow Tick
Accreditation
IPC Health is an accessible and welcoming
service to all people in the community. We
are working towards ensuring our services
are changing from being LGBTI friendly to
being LGBTI inclusive. Our aim is to receive
Rainbow Tick Accreditation, a certification
of quality assurance for members of LGBTI
communities.
In the last year we have achieved:

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender and Intersex
Communities
IDAHOBIT 2019
We celebrated the International Day
Against Homophobia, Biphobia, Intersexism
& Transphobia (IDAHOBIT) across campuses
with workshops facilitated by LGBTIQ guest
speakers, who shared their knowledge and
experiences with 44 staff across Deer Park,
Hoppers Crossing, and Altona Meadows.
Subjects included: Trans & Gender
Diverse Health; Challenging Homophobia,
Transphobia, Biphobia, and Intersexism;
Neurodiversity; Intersectional Needs of
LGBTIQ Clients and Disability & LGBTIQ
clients and HIV & Ageing.

Evaluation results were very positive:
• 92 per cent of staff said they had an
increased understanding of the needs
of the rainbow community from having
participated in the workshops; and
• One hundred per cent of staff
recommended that we continue to
organise workshops facilitated by LGBTIQ
community members in the future.
Staff particularly enjoyed the narrative
style of the sessions:
“The highlight for me was being presented
the information and education in the form
of narrative which was extremely engaging
and emotionally triggering; and this has
allowed me to comprehend the content
on a deeper level. I find that information
presented to me in this way allows me to
better absorb and retain the information;
which will allow me as a clinician to be able
to offer a better level of support, empathy
and awareness for my LGBTIQ clients; and
also peers.”
IPC Health staff member feedback
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• Increase in staff training – 4 types
of LGBTI inclusive practice training
sessions were available and 156 people
participated
• A Diversity Statement displayed in
all waiting rooms to demonstrate
our commitment to diversity, which
reads: “IPC Health values diversity
and is committed to creating safe,
supportive and welcoming services to
diverse populations, including, but not
limited to: Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people; lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender, and intersex (LGBTI
Individuals); people of all abilities;
people experiencing health inequities;
and culturally and linguistically
diverse individuals.”
• An Expected Behaviours Statement
to be displayed in waiting rooms and
online “This organisation respects
members of diverse communities and
does not tolerate any form of ageism,
ableism, racism, sexism, homophobia,
biphobia, or transphobia, or phobias
expressed towards others. Please let
one of our friendly staff know if you, or
someone you care for, have experienced
any form of inappropriate behaviour
while using our service.”
• Transgender and pride flags visible
alongside Australian, Aboriginal, Torres
Strait Islander and Rainbow pride flags
on every reception desk. IPC Health is
also installing flag poles out the front of
one campus in each Local Government
Area. Wyndham Vale has been installed;
Deer Park will be next, followed by
Altona Meadows.

Sex Positivity and Rainbow Youth
Working together with Brimbank, Hobsons
Bay, Melton and Wyndham City Councils
and the Queer Youth Alliance Network
(QYAN), we delivered the Sex Positivity
and Rainbow Youth Project. We recruited
a queer identifying peer youth facilitator,
Jacob, to collaboratively deliver co-design
workshops with 30 LGBTIQ+ young people.
Sex Positivity and Rainbow Youth
participants determined ‘identity and
self-esteem’, ‘discrimination and safety’
and ‘sexual and mental health’ as key
themes. We therefore established two
new partnership opportunities with the
Qwest network and a Trocadero Art Space
to deliver a community art exhibition
showcasing LGBTIQ+ Youth PRIDE on
themes of identity and self-esteem. The
exhibition was displayed at the Louis
Joel Community Art Centre (Hobsons
Bay) in October and Trocadero Art Space
(Maribyrnong) in November.
As a part of the co-design project,
pre and post evaluation survey’s were
conducted with young people. The main
findings include:
• one third of young people surveyed within
co-design workshops indicated that they
are more confident with accessing GPs
and mental health services
• all young people surveyed reported an
increase in their ability to seek support
regarding their sexual health.
• IPC Health was identified as an
organisation that was a ‘one stop shop’
for a range of inclusive health services
for a trans-identifying young person.
Quotes from participants:
“I’m very happy that organisations
like this exist. It makes me feel less
ashamed of myself.”
“Thanks for doing this
and caring.”

51

Prevention and Response to
Family Violence
IPC Health is a full implementing partner
to the Preventing Violence Together
(PVT) Western Region Partnership.
We are committed to responding to
the determinants of violence against
women. We use our workplace as a
setting to promote gender equality.

Up to 120 staff attended campus based
events to launch the challenge with
positive feedback received. Evaluation
conducted during the event indicates
that a majority of survey respondents felt
more aware of family violence, its impacts
and the role they can play as result of the
campaign. Majority of survey respondents
also indicated that they are going to take
up the 16 days activity challenge.

16 Days Activist Challenge

Gender Equity

Every year the partnership hosts and
promotes a 16 Days Activist Challenge
across the western region, inviting people
to commit to a range of actions to learn
about and promote gender equity. This
takes place from November 25, the
International Day for the Elimination of
Violence against Women to December
10, which marks the International Day of
Human Rights.

Gender Equity capacity building training
on understanding and preventing
violence against women, gender equity
and bystander action were delivered by
Women’s Health West Victoria to 35 IPC
Health staff enrolled over three training
session offered across multiple sites.
Attendees included our CEO Jayne Nelson
and many senior managers.

This year the challenge was led by male
identifying staff, launched a successful
16 Days Activist Challenge campaign
encouraging all staff at IPC Health to
take up the challenge and commit to
actions to learn about, reflect on, and to
educate others on men’s violence against
women and gender equity. Staff BBQs and
morning and afternoon teas were held at
various campuses with keynote speeches
highlighting the key drivers of violence
against women.

Staff who attended reported an increase
in knowledge and understanding of key
terms, increased awareness of the need
to address and rectify violence against
women, increased capacity to account
for gender during service delivery and
an increase in confidence to take action.

First flag raising
ceremony at
IPC Health
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Cancer

Cancer Screening

Cancer Support

Cervical Screening

IPC Health runs a monthly Breast Cancer
Support Group with between 15 -25 women
attending. New members continue to join
the group and some of the women are
from areas such as Coburg and Essendon.

Cervical screening is being provided at
IPC Health clinics by our GPs and Youth
and Women’s Health Nurses.

Feedback from the participants have
identified the following benefits of
attending the group:
• “Attending the group has helped
me cope with breast cancer”
• “I have gained support from
attending the group”
• “I have increased my knowledge
about breast cancer and treatment”
• “The meetings have a good balance
of information and sharing”
• “I really appreciate the friendships
I have made from the group and it
is a great outlet”
• “The women who attend the group
really get what it means to have a
breast cancer diagnosis”
• “I don’t feel so isolated”.
The women can also contact each
other between meetings. This has been
particularly helpful for the women who
have needed more support.
To assist with both recovery and reducing
the risk of breast cancer recurrence,
a weekly walking group has been
established. A group of women meet
weekly regardless of weather conditions
and walk for an hour then have coffee.
This group has not only improved women’s
level of fitness, but has also provided the
opportunity for more intimate relationships
as this is a smaller group.
Another off shoot of the group is a monthly
movie group at the Sun theatre on the day
after the meeting.

Cervical
Screening
Tests

Education
about cancer
screening and
prevention

Brimbank

510
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Hobsons Bay

125

14

Wyndham

366

6

Site

Breast and Bowel screening are also
promoted by our Youth & Women’s
Health Nurses to the women attending
the women’s health clinic for cervical
screening. Several women, including
those from Culturally and Linguistically
Diverse (CALD) backgrounds were not
aware of these programs and were eager
to participate in the screening.
Quote from the National Bowel Cancer
Screening Program:
“We really appreciate the support
that teams such as yours give to the
Program through community/clinic
demonstration of the kits. It is initiatives
like this that can truly assist in promoting
greater participation in the Program.”

Self sampling for human papillomavirus
(HPV) is offered to women who are age
30 and over who are underscreened or
unscreened. It is a major advancement
and expected to improve equity in
participation in cervical screening by
reaching women who were previously
unable to overcome barriers to
participate in conventional screening.

Friendships made
in support groups
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SEND US YOUR
FEEDBACK

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
AND

Do you have feedback on this report?
You can send an email to ipchealth@ipchealth.com.au or fill in the form below and send
it to PO Box 171 Deer Park, VIC, 3023 or hand it to a Customer Service officer at one of
our campuses.

Quality Account 2018/2019 Feedback Form

DIRECTOR'S
REPORT

Age
Under 25

25 – 45

45 – 65

Female

X / other

Over 65

Gender
Male

Was the report interesting?
All

Most

Some

None

Some

None

Was the report easy to read?
All

Most

Comments:
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IPC Health Ltd
Directors' Report

Your directors present their report of the IPC Health Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Short Term Objectives

Directors

The company's short term objectives are set out in our Strategic Directions 2017/19 Streamlining and Enhancing Internal
and Shared Capacity Stage.

The names of the directors in office at any time during, or since the end of the year are:
George Kogios
Daryl Whitfort
Trish McCluskey
Rennis Witham
Jenny McMahon
John Hedditch
Peter Gluskie
Sanela Osmic
Patricia Collocott
Meredith Swaby

The Company’s medium term objectives are set out in out Strategic Directions 2017‐19. These can be summarised as two
discrete phases of work:

Board Member/Chairperson (from 6 February 2019)
Board Member/Deputy Chairperson (from 6 February 2019)
Board Member (Chairperson to 6 February 2019)
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member (Deputy Chairperson to 6 February 2019)
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member (Appointed 6 February 2019)
Board Member (Resigned 7 November 2018)

∙ Predicting and meeting demand ‐ Develop Capacity (work underway)
∙ Innovating for future needs ‐ Flourish and Grow (commenced in 2018)
Long Term Objectives
The company's long term objectives are to consistently deliver high quality, safe, integrated, culturally appropriate services
that deliver improvements in the health, and promote the well‐being of, the communities we serve.
How Principal Activities Assist in Achieving the Objectives

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

The organisation continues to develop and enhance service delivery to the local community in collaboration with its
partners in health, social care and the community and is actively seeking out opportunities to build and strengthen strategic
partnerships and alliances.

Principal Activities
We work to improve and promote the community's health.

Performance Measures

IPC Health delivers services primarily, but not limited to, the cities of Brimbank, Wyndham and Hobsons Bay with a total
population of over 500,000. We exist so that communities are healthy and well, and individuals, through a single point of
contact, can connect to a full spectrum of care and support using consistent approaches including those of our partners.

We judge our success by four factors which are:

Our role spans primary prevention, quality of life support, service navigation, secondary prevention and harm reduction and
primary health treatment.
Our care addresses a full range of health conditions including those most prominently contributing to the health burden in
Melbourne's West, namely: heart disease, diabetes, hepatitis, mental health, dental health, COPD and stroke.

∙ We provide care that is highly valued;
∙ We have a positive reputation amongst all who rely on us or interact with us;
∙ We run services as effective viable businesses; and
∙ We conduct our operations soundly and professionally.
Our governance structures have been reviewed and a balanced scorecard is used to measure and report success on each of
these and to be able to plan improvements as required.

Our services are provided in a range of settings including care at home. Our six campuses are located across Western
Melbourne at: St Albans, Sunshine, Deer Park, Hopper Crossing, Wyndham Vale and Altona Meadows.

Members Guarantee

We collaborate with out partners including local government authorities in support of their Health and Wellbeing Plans that
focus attention on the determinants of health and associated risk factors and behaviours such as physical inactivity, family
violence an alcohol and drug consumption.

IPC Health Ltd is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the company, the
amount capable of being called up from each members and any person or association who ceased to be a member in the
year prior to the winding up, is limited to $10 for all members, subject to the provisions of the company's constitution.

Significant Changes

At 30 June 2019 the collective liability of members was $170 (2018: $230).

In the opinion of the directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the company that occurred during
the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial report.

Review of Operations
Improved financial management and procurement has continued, along with efficiency improvements, a focus of continuing
to drive down overheads and better use of resources means that IPC Health's financial position has significantly improved.
The accounting surplus for the company for the 2018/19 financial year amounted to $270K, compared to $328K for
2017/18.
Compared to 2017/18 ongoing operating costs increased by 1.06%, while revenue rose by 0.87%.
Overall the operating margin (before capital grants and depreciation) increased from 3.70% in 2017/18 to 4.59% in 2018/19 ‐
which is above the industry benchmark.
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After Balance Date Events

Information on Directors (continued)

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which affected or may significantly affect
the operations of the company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the company, in future years.

Trish McCluskey

Environmental Issues

Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

The company is not subject to any significant environmental regulation.
Rennis Witham

Directors' Benefits
No director has received or become entitled to receive, during or since the financial year, a benefit because of a contract
made by the company, controlled entity or related body corporate with a director, a firm which a director is a member or an
entity in which a director has a substantial financial interest except as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. This
statement excludes a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors
shown in the company's accounts, or the fixed salary of a full‐time employee of the company, controlled entity or related
body corporate.
Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers
The company has indemnified all directors and the chief executive officer in respect of liabilities to other persons (other
than the company or related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors or chief executive officer of the
company except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith.

Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

Bachelor of Business, GAICD, IECL Accredited Coach.
Board Member (from 1 March 2017)

John Hedditch
Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

Grad Dip Health Service Management.
Board Member (from 27 November 2013)
Deputy Chairperson (to 6 February 2019)

Peter Gluskie
Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

Proceedings on Behalf of the Entity

Qualifications:

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the entity or intervene in any proceedings to
which the entity is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the entity for all or any part of those
proceedings.

Special Responsibilities:

BEng; MBA; CPPD; GAICD, FAIPM.
Board Member (from 1 March 2017)

Sanela Osmic
Masters of International Business; Bbus (Economics, International Trade), GAICD, John Maxwell
Certified Coach, Speaker & Trainer.
Board Member (from 15 March 2017)

Patricia Collocott
Qualifications:

The entity was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Special Responsibilities:

Information on Directors

Bachelor Applied Science (Speech Pathology), Graduate Diploma Public Sector Management,
AFACHSM, GAICD
Board Member (Appointed 6 February 2019)

Meredith Swaby

George Kogios

Special Responsibilities:

BA Soc.Sc; Cert IV Training Assessment.
Board Member (from 24 February 2016)

Jenny McMahon

Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium is prohibited by the confidentiality clause of the
contract of insurance. The company has not provided any insurance for an auditor of the company or a related body
corporate.

Qualifications:

BA (Education); Master of Education (M.Ed); Grad Cert in Educational Leadership; Grad Cert in
Health Science; Registered Div 1 Nurse.
Board Member (from 24 November 2010)
Chairperson (to 6 February 2019)

BBus (Accounting); MAICD; Post Graduate Diploma (Taxation); Diploma of Superannuation
Management; Fellow ‐ Association of Superannuation Funds of Australia (FASFA); Regulatory
Guidelines (RG146 Accredited).
Board Member (from 3 March 2014)
Chairperson (from 6 February 2019)

Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

BACs (Speech Pathology); Graduate Certificate – Health Service Management; MAICD.
Board Member (Resigned 7 November 2018)

Daryl Whitfort
Qualifications:
Special Responsibilities:

MBA; BBus (Accounting); FCPA; GAICD.
Board Member (from 1 March 2017)
Deputy Chairperson (from 6 February 2019)
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During the financial year, 11 meetings of directors were held. Attendances by each director were as follows:
Board of Directors Finance Committee

George Kogios
Daryl Whitfort
Trish McCluskey
Rennis Witham
Jenny McMahon
John Hedditch
Peter Gluskie
Sanela Osmic
Patricia Collocott
Meredith Swaby

Eligible

11
11
11
11
11
11
11
11
5
5

Attended

11
11
7
10
9
11
11
10
3
4

Eligible

10
10
10

4

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Attended

7
10
8

4

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Clinical
Governance,
Quality and Risk
Committee

Eligible
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

3

4
2
1

‐

Attended
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

1

4
1
1

‐

Strategy and
Planning
Committee
Eligible

4

5
1
5

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Attended

1
1
3
5

Governance,
Nominations &
Remunerations
Committee

Eligible

‐
‐

1

2
3

‐
‐
‐
‐

3

‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Attended

1

2
3

3

‐

‐
‐
‐

As lead auditor for the audit of IPC Health Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2019, I declare that, to the best of
my knowledge and belief, there have been:
i)

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not‐for‐
profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit and
ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

‐
‐

Auditors' Independence Declaration
The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2019 has been received and can be found on page
6 of the financial reports.
The directors' report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

George Kogios, Chairperson

Lead auditor’s independence declaration under section 60‐40 of the Australian
Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012 to the directors of IPC Health
Ltd

Daryl Whitfort, Deputy Chairperson

Dated this 4th day of September 2019
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Andrew Frewin Stewart
61 Bull Street, Bendigo Vic 3550
Dated this 4th day of September 2019

Adrian Downing
Lead Auditor

IPC Health Ltd
Statement of Financial Position

IPC Health Ltd
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

As at 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Notes

2019
$

Revenue

2

39,601,071

Other income

2

13,169

Employee benefits expense

Notes

2018
$
39,259,838
‐

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets

(1,639,290)

(1,411,094)

(705,763)

(883,964)

(2,805,997)

(3,214,642)

Medical and paramedical expenses

(587,055)

(449,026)

Repairs and maintenance expenses

(1,507,623)

(913,397)

Motor vehicle expenses

(360,751)

(520,262)

Total current liabilities

Utility expenses

(819,279)

(719,044)

Non‐current liabilities

Staff amenities and training expenses

(673,921)

(559,569)

(1,674,237)

(1,597,561)

Client services expenses

Other expenses
Surplus for the year

270,375

3
4
5

Total current assets

(28,663,181)

Lease expense

328,098

Other comprehensive income

16,379,102
1,638,011
104,283

13,970,145
1,623,251
108,075

18,121,396

15,701,471

28,696,827
26,680

28,920,877
53,349

28,723,507
46,844,903

28,974,226
44,675,697

2,561,264
5,063,166
5,513,998

4,457,803
1,478,659
4,978,595

13,138,428

10,915,057

968,922

1,293,462

968,922
14,107,350
32,737,553

1,293,462
12,208,519
32,467,178

32,737,553

32,467,178

32,737,553

32,467,178

Non‐current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

6
7

Total non‐current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Provisions

Provisions
Total non‐current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

8
9
10

10

Equity
Retained earnings

Other comprehensive income for the year

‐

‐

Total equity

Total other comprehensive income

‐

‐

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

270,375

328,098

Total comprehensive income for the year

2018
$

Current assets

(28,569,949)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

2019
$

The above Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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IPC Health Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity

IPC Health Ltd
Statement of Cashflows

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Retained Earnings
$
Balance at 1 July 2017
Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year
Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total
$

32,139,080

32,139,080

328,098

328,098

‐

‐

Balance at 30 June 2018

32,467,178

32,467,178

Balance at 1 July 2018

32,467,178

32,467,178

270,375

270,375

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year
Total other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 June 2019

‐
32,737,553

‐
32,737,553

Notes

2019
$

2018
$

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from clients and government grants
Donations
Interest received
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

11

47,085,410
14,194
345,243
(43,660,488)

43,639,484
71,849
157,615
(40,151,548)

3,784,359

3,717,400

51,000
(1,426,402)

1,285,500
(1,500,710)

(1,375,402)
2,408,957

(215,210)
3,502,190
10,467,955
13,970,145

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

3

13,970,145
16,379,102

The above Statement of Cashflows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements cover IPC Health Ltd as an individual entity, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. IPC Health Ltd
is a company limited by guarantee.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(b) Revenue

Basis of preparation

Non‐reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the entity obtains control of the grant and it is probable
that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity and the amount of the grant can be measured
reliably.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards ‐ Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Australian Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012 . The company is a not‐for‐profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the contribution, the
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial
statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Apart from the changes
in accounting policies, standards and interpretations as noted below, material accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements are the same as those adopted in the previous period.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on
historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non‐current assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back to the
contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on
receipt.
IPC Health Ltd receives non‐reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for zero or a nominal
value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the Statement of Financial Position, with a
corresponding amount of income recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 4 September 2019 by the directors of the company.
(a) Changes in accounting policies, standards and interpretations

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate
inherent in the instrument.

Initial application of AASB 9: Financial Instruments

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon delivery of the service to the customers.

AASB 9 replaces AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and includes a model for classification
and measurement, a single, forward‐looking "expected loss" impairment model and a substantially reformed approach to
hedge accounting.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.

The company has adopted AASB 9 on the effective date of 1 July 2018. The company has performed an impact assessment
and there is no significant change to the measurement basis from adoption of the new classification and measurement
model under AASB 9.

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997 .

AASB 9 changed the company's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing the incurred loss
approach under AASB 139 with the forward looking expected credit loss approach on all trade and other receivables. The
company has adopted the simplified approach and records lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables and has
established a provision matrix that is based on the company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
factors specific to debtors and the economic environment. On adoption of AASB 9, there was no significant impact to the
impairment loss allowance.

(c) Income tax

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short‐term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

The company do not apply hedge accounting and therefore there is no impact to the financial report on adoption of AASB 9
in relation to hedge accounting.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Trade and Other Receivables

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment

Trade and other receivables includes amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets. All other receivables are classified as non‐current assets.

Depreciation

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.
(f) Property, Plant and Equipment

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight line basis over the asset's
useful life to the company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset
Buildings
Motor Vehicles
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Property

Depreciation Rate
2.5‐5%
20%
10%
33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Land and buildings are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Freehold land and buildings that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost are valued and recognised at the fair
value of the asset at the date it is acquired (deemed cost).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts
included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Plant and Equipment

(g) Financial Instruments

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis and are therefore is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount and
impairment losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate to a
revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note
1 (g) for details of impairment).

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised at the fair value
of the asset at the date it is acquired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the
instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the entity commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e.
trade date accounting is adopted).
Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where
the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or
loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other
circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.
Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain significant financing
component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Financial Instruments

(g) Financial Instruments

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Financial assets are subsequently measured at:
‐ amortised cost;
‐ fair value through other comprehensive income; or
‐ fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:
‐ amortised cost; or
‐ fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit or loss if the financial liability is:
‐ a contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3: Business Combination applies;
‐ held for trading; or
‐ initially designated as fair value through profit or loss.
All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest expense in
profit or loss over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or
liability. That is, it is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.
A financial liability is held for trading if it is:
‐ incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term;
‐ part of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short‐term profit taking; or
‐ a derivative financial instrument (except for a derivative that is in a financial guarantee contract or a derivative that is
in effective hedging relationships).
Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.
The change in fair value of the financial liability attributable to changes in the issuer’s credit risk is taken to other
comprehensive income and is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings
upon derecognition of the financial liability.
If taking the change in credit risk in other comprehensive income enlarges or creates an accounting mismatch, then these
gains or losses should be taken to profit or loss rather than other comprehensive income.

Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria:
‐ the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and
‐ the business model for managing the financial assets.
A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at amortised cost:
‐ the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and
‐ the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.
A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income:
‐ the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates; and
‐ the business model for managing the financial asset comprises both contractual cash flows collection and the selling of
the financial asset.
By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the measurement conditions of amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The entity initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through profit or loss if:
‐ it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (often referred to as an “accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases;
‐ it is in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the groupings
is documented appropriately, so the performance of the financial liability that is part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets can be managed and evaluated consistently on a fair value basis; and
‐ it is a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows otherwise
required by the contract.

A financial liability cannot be reclassified.
The initial designation of financial instruments to measure at fair value through profit or loss is a one‐time option on initial
classification and is irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Financial Instruments

(g) Financial Instruments

Derecognition

Derecognition

Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the Statement of
Financial Position.

Loss allowance is not recognised for:
‐ financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Expected credit losses are the probability‐weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a financial
instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expected to be
received, all discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial instrument.

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified terms, or a substantial
modification to the terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a
new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non‐cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred in
such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.
All the following criteria need to be satisfied for the derecognition of a financial asset:
‐ the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;
‐ all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and
‐ the entity no longer controls the asset (i.e. has no practical ability to make unilateral decision to sell the asset to a third
party).
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The entity recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income.

The entity uses the simplified approach, as applicable under AASB 9. The simplified approach does not require tracking of
changes in credit risk at every reporting period, but instead requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all
times. The approach is applicable to trade receivables.
In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into consideration various
data to get to an expected credit loss (i.e. diversity of its customer base, appropriate groupings of its historical loss
experience etc.).
Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements
At each reporting date, the entity recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to that asset.
Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income. The amount in relation to change in credit risk is transferred from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss at every reporting period.
For financial assets that are unrecognised (e.g. loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial guarantees), a provision for
loss allowance is created in the Statement of Financial Position to recognise the loss allowance.
(h) Impairment of Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is
compared to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is
recognised in profit or loss.
Where the assets are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash inflows – that is, they are specialised assets
held for continuing use of their service capacity – the recoverable amounts are expected to be materially the same as fair
value.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of Assets

(k) Provisions

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash‐generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are
measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Where an impairment loss on a revalued individual asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus in
respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation
surplus for that class of asset.

(l) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO).

(i) Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits
Provision is made for the entity’s obligation for short‐term employee benefits. Short‐term employee benefits are benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including salaries, wages, ADOs, annual leave, sick
leave and the amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed
the required years of service. Short‐term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be
paid when the obligation is settled. The entity’s obligations for short‐term employee benefits such as salaries and wages are
recognised as part of current trade and other payables in the Statement of Financial Position.
Long‐term employee benefits
The entity classifies employees' long service leave entitlements as long term employee benefits where employees have not
completed the required years of service and they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Provision is made for the entity’s obligation
for long‐term employee benefits, which are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to
employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and
employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any
remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for long‐term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss
in the periods in which the changes occur.
The entity’s obligations for long‐term employee benefits are presented as non‐current liabilities in its statement of financial
position, except where the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current liabilities.
(j) Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the entity that remain unpaid at the
end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days
of recognition of the liability.
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Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or
payments to suppliers.
Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows
included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.
(m) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year where
required by accounting standards or as a result of changes in accounting policy.
(n) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The director's evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge
and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on
current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the company.
Key Estimates
Annual leave
For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119: Employee Benefits defines obligations for short‐term employee benefits as
obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annul reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. The entity expects most employees will take their annual leave entitlements within
24 months of the reporting period in which they were earned, but this will not have a material impact on the amounts
recognised in respect of obligations for employees' leave entitlements.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1.

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q) New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

Long service leave calculation
The company assesses the long service leave liability in accordance with the requirements of AASB 119: Employee Benefits
and applies probability factors reducing the balance of the liability on employees' balances that have not reached their
vesting period i.e. not entitled to be paid out as at 30 June 2019. The probability factors are increased as the respective
employees' years of service increase and are provided for at 100% probability at vesting period (in accordance with
employment conditions).

New pronouncement
AASB 15: Revenue from
Contracts with Customers
AASB 1058: Income of Not‐
for‐profit Entities

Effective
date
1 January
2019

The probability rates have been determined based on management's best estimate and it has not been based on past
retention data.
(o) Economic Dependence

‐ There will be a significant increase in deferred grant funding recognised in
‐
the Statement of Financial Position and a corresponding decrease in grant
‐
funding revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
‐
Income.

IPC Health Ltd is dependent upon the State of Victoria, via the Department of Health & Human Services, for the funding of a
significant proportion of its operations. At the date of this report the Board of Directors has no reason to believe the
Department will not continue to support IPC Health Ltd.
AASB 16: Leases

(p) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities
The company measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value either on a recurring or non‐recurring basis, depending
on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standards.
"Fair value" is the price the company would sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly (i.e.
unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.
As fair value is a market‐based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine
fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability.
The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market information.
To the extent possible, market information is extracted from the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. market with
the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability). In the absence of such a market, market information is
extracted from the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market
that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset and minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after
taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

Likely impact on initial application
The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 15 and
AASB 1058. However based on the entity's preliminary assessment, the
accounting for the revenue stream "operating grants" will be primarily affected by
these new standards. The income recognition for each grant will be assessed on a
high level basis to determine whether it is enforceable and whether it's
performance obligations are sufficiently specific. For grant agreements that are
not enforceable or the performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, this
will result in immediate income recognition under AASB 1058. Income will be
deferred under AASB 15 otherwise. The likely impact of the first time adoption
under this accounting treatment for the year ending 30 June 2020 includes:

1 January
2019

The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 16.
However based on the entity's preliminary assessment, the likely impact on the
first time adoption of the Standard for the year ending 30 June 2020 includes:
‐ There will be a significant increase in right of use assets and financial
‐
liabilities recognised on the Statement of Financial Position.
‐ The reported equity will reduce as the carrying amount of the lease assets will
reduce more quickly than the carrying amount of the lease liabilities.
‐ EBIT in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income will be
higher as the implicit interest in lease payments for former off Statement of
Financial Position leases will be presented as part of finance costs, rather than
being included in operating expenses.
‐ EBITDA in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income will
be higher as depreciation on the right of use assets will be recognised, rather than
having operating leases expense recognised.
‐ Operating cash outflows will be lower and financing cash flows will be higher in
the Statement of Cash Flows as principal repayments on all lease liabilities will
now be included in financing activities rather than operating activities. Interest
can also be included within financing activities.

For non‐financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant's ability to use the asset
in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The fair value of liabilities and the entity's own equity instrument (if any) may be valued, where there is no observable
market price in relation to the transfer of such financial instrument, by reference to observable market information where
such instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and
where significant, are detailed in the respective note to the financial statements.
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2.

Revenue and Other Income

2019
$

2018
$

Note 5.

Revenue
‐ operating grants
‐ provision of services
‐ donations
‐ interest
‐ other fees
‐ other income
‐ capital and non‐recurrent grants

34,650,732
422,055
14,194
345,243
3,541,227
534,035
93,585

34,908,138
344,480
71,848
157,615
2,902,361
587,396
288,000

39,601,071

39,259,838

Total Revenue and Other Income
Note 3.

13,169

‐

13,169

‐

39,614,240

14,958
1,789,618
14,574,526

5,008
7,734,434
6,230,703

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

16,379,102

13,970,145

Total Other Assets

104,283

108,075

260,000

260,000

1,726,121

1,603,811

35,705,919
(10,442,453)
25,263,466

34,742,914
(9,466,595)
25,276,319

27,249,587

27,140,130

Note 6.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and Buildings
Freehold land
At cost

Buildings
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Plant and Equipment
Motor Vehicle
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Office Equipment
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables
Allowance for credit loss
Other receivables

108,075

Total Land and Buildings

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Short term bank deposits

Note 4.

104,283

39,259,838

Cash and Cash Equivalents

927,418
(10,000)
720,593

804,473
(10,000)
828,778

Total Trade and Other Receivables

1,638,011

1,623,251

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost classified as trade and other receivables (note 16)
Total trade and other receivables
Allowance for credit loss

1,638,011
10,000

1,623,251
10,000

Total financial assets at amortised cost

1,648,011

1,633,251
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2018
$

Prepaid expenses

Capital works in progress
At cost

Other income
‐ gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Other Assets

2019
$

Computer Equipment
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Plant and Equipment
Total Property, Plant and Equipment

510,236
(211,537)
298,699

336,114
(204,856)
131,258

2,016,103
(1,222,383)
793,720

1,965,903
(945,192)
1,020,711

1,524,743
(1,169,922)
354,821

1,524,598
(895,820)
628,778

1,447,240

1,780,747

28,696,827

28,920,877
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IPC Health Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 6.

Note 7.

Buildings
$
26,154,864
81,708
7,330
‐
(967,583)
25,276,319
‐
963,005
‐
(975,858)
25,263,466

Motor
Vehicles
$
160,327
‐
‐
‐
(29,069)
131,258
290,740
‐
(37,831)
(85,468)
298,699

Office
Equipment
$
975,136
225,588
‐
‐
(180,013)
1,020,711
4,414
45,787
‐
(277,192)
793,720

Intangible Assets

Computer
Equipment
$
389,261
404,660
42,617
‐
(207,760)
628,778
146
‐
‐
(274,103)
354,821
2019
$

Total
$
28,804,592
1,500,710
‐
‐
(1,384,425)
28,920,877
1,426,402
‐
(37,831)
(1,612,621)
28,696,827
2018
$

Customer Database
At cost
Less accumulated amortisation and impairment

80,018
(53,338)

80,018
(26,669)

Total Intangible Assets

26,680

53,349

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions
Amortisation expense
Balance at end of financial year

53,349
‐
(26,669)
26,680

80,018
‐
(26,669)
53,349

Note 8.

2018
$

Grants in advance

5,063,166

1,478,659

Total Other Liabilities

5,063,166

1,478,659

143,379
2,285,631
3,084,988

203,062
2,083,068
2,692,465

5,513,998

4,978,595

968,922

1,293,462

6,482,920

6,272,057

Note 9.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Movements in carrying amounts:
Freehold
Capital WIP
Land
$
$
1 July 2017
260,000
865,004
Additions
‐
788,754
Transfers
‐
(49,947)
Disposals
‐
‐
Depreciation
‐
‐
1 July 2018
260,000
1,603,811
Additions
‐
1,131,102
Transfers
‐
(1,008,792)
Disposals
‐
‐
Depreciation
‐
‐
30 June 2019
260,000
1,726,121

2019
$

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables
GST payable
Other payables

1,303
91,487
2,468,474

460,113
255,020
3,742,670

Total Trade and Other Payables

2,561,264

4,457,803

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade and other payables (note 17)
Total trade and other payables
GST payable

2,561,264
(91,487)

4,457,803
(255,020)

Total financial liabilities at amortised cost

2,469,777

4,202,783
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Note 10.

Other liabilities

Provisions

Current
Provision for ADO
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave

Non‐Current
Provision for long service leave
Total Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for ADO, annual leave and long service leave.
The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for ADO and annual leave entitlements and the
amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required
period of service. Based on past experience, the company does not expect the full amount of annual leave or long service
leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be
classified as current liabilities since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these
amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.
The non‐current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have not yet
vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service.
In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave
being taken is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employee benefits have been
discussed in Note 1 (i).
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 11.

Cashflow Information

Reconciliation of surplus to net cash provided by operating activities
Surplus

2019
$

2018
$

270,375

328,098

1,639,290
(13,169)

1,411,094
‐

Changes in assets and liabilities:
‐ (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
‐ (Increase)/decrease in other assets
‐ Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
‐ Increase/(decrease) in grants in advance
‐ Increase/(decrease) in provisions

(14,760)
3,792
(1,896,539)
3,584,507
210,863

(354,833)
107,436
687,182
1,409,004
129,419

Net cashflows provided by operating activities

3,784,359

3,717,400

Non cash items:
‐
depreciation
‐
gain on disposal of assets

Note 12.

Capital and Leasing Commitments

2018
$

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments for capital projects:
Payable
‐ no later than 12 months
‐ between 12 months and 5 years
‐ greater than 5 years

Note 13.

2,321,000
‐
‐
2,321,000

‐
‐
‐
‐

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

There are no known contingent assets or contingent liabilities for IPC Health Ltd as at 30 June 2019.
Note 14.

Events after the Reporting Period

The directors are not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period.

Capital and Leasing Commitments

Note 15.

(a) Operating Lease Commitments
Non‐cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial
statements:
Payable ‐ minimum lease payments
‐ no later than 12 months
‐ between 12 months and 5 years
‐ greater than 5 years

Note 12.

2019
$

Director and Related Party Disclosures

The totals of remuneration paid to the key management personnel (including Board Directors) of IPC Health Ltd during
the year are as follows:
2019
$
460,153
514,793
‐
974,946

2018
$
596,188
978,157
‐
1,574,345

As at 30 June 2019 the company was committed to the following operating leases:

Salary and fees
Superannuation
Non cash benefits

2019
$
1,422,182
115,054
180,880

2018
$
1,495,627
129,504
178,141

Total Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (KMP)

1,718,116

1,803,272

‐ A non‐cancellable operating lease contract for the rental of suites 122, 122A and 2/3 of the Harvester Centre, Sunshine.
The term is to November 2021.
‐ 29 non‐cancellable operating lease contracts for the use of motor vehicles. Each lease has different end dates with the
last expiry date being January 2021.
An additional lease is also in place for land which will be purchased upon subdivision.
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IPC Health Ltd
Directors' Declaration

Note 16.

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of IPC Health Ltd, the directors of the entity declare that:

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Financial Risk Management

The company's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments, short‐term
investments and accounts receivable and payable.

1

a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards ‐ Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

The carrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9: Financial
Instruments as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:
Note

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

3
4(i)

Total financial assets

2019
$

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 1 to 29, are in accordance with the Australian
Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012 and:

2018
$

16,379,102
1,648,011

13,970,145
1,633,251

18,027,113

15,603,396

b. give a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date.
2

In the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable.

George Kogios, Chairperson

Financial liabilities
Daryl Whitfort, Deputy Chairperson

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables

8(i)

Total financial liabilities
Note 17.

2,469,777

4,202,783

2,469,777

4,202,783

Dated this 4th day of September 2019

Registered Office/Principal Place of Business

The registered office is:
IPC Health Ltd
106 Station Rd
Deer Park VICTORIA 3023

The principal place of business is:
IPC Health Ltd
106 Station Rd
Deer Park VICTORIA 3023
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of IPC Health Ltd
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of IPC Health Ltd, is in accordance with the Australian Charities and Not‐
for‐profits Commission Act 2012, including:
i.

giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its performance
for the year ended on that date and
ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards ‐ Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Australian
Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Regulations 2013.

What we have audited

IPC Health Ltd’s (the company) financial report comprises the:







Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended
Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
Statement of cash flows for the year then ended
Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes
The directors' declaration of the entity.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Other information

The company may prepare an annual report that may include the financial statements, director’s report
and declaration and our audit report (the financial report). The annual report may also include “other
information” on the entity’s operations and financial results and financial position as set out in the financial
report, typically in a Chairperson’s report and reports covering governance and other matters.
The directors are responsible for the other information. An annual report has not been made available to us
as of the date of this auditor's report.

If we identify that a material inconsistency appears to exist when we read the annual report (or become
aware that the other information appears to be materially misstated), we will discuss the matter with the
directors and where we believe that a material misstatement of the other information exists, we will
request management to correct the other information.

Other Matter

The financial report of IPC Health Ltd., for the year ended 30 June 2018, was audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on that report on 5 September 2018.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian Charities
and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards ‐ Reduced Disclosure Requirements and
the Australian Charities and Not‐for‐profits Commission Act 2012 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/home.aspx. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Andrew Frewin Stewart
61 Bull Street, Bendigo, 3550
Dated this 4th day of September 2019

Adrian Downing
Lead Auditor

IPC Health Corporate Office
106 Station Road Deer Park VIC 3023
PO Box 171 Deer Park VIC 3023
Phone: 03 9219 7142
ACN 136 685 151 ABN 68 846 923 225
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Wyndham Vale
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St Albans VIC 3021
Phone: 03 9296 1200
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510 Ballan Road
Wyndham Vale VIC 3024
Phone: 03 9216 7777

Sunshine

Hoppers Crossing
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Sunshine VIC 3020
Phone: 03 9313 5000
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